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Dear Mr Carter

I attach for the attention of the Committee the submission of the Australian Vice-Chancellors' Committee (AVCC) to its inquiry into the Innovation and Education Legislation Amendments Bill 2001.

The AVCC would be pleased to attend the Committee’s hearings on this reference on 15 June 2001.  Could you please contact Conor King, Director Policy and Co-ordination, with details about the hearings (c.king@avcc.edu.au; ph: 6285 8208).

Yours sincerely

John Mullarvey

Chief Executive Officer

Innovation and Education Legislation Amendments Bill 2001
The Government’s Innovation and Education Legislation Amendments Bill 2001 has been referred to the Senate Employment, Workplace Relations, Small Business and Education Committee for inquiry.  The Bill gives force to the additional ARC funds, additional research infrastructure funding, and the Postgraduate Education Loans Scheme (PELS) announced in the Government’s Backing Australia’s Abilities package.  

This submission from the Australian Vice-Chancellors' Committee (AVCC) focuses on the Bill’s provisions to establish the Postgraduate Education Loans Scheme. 

It is AVCC policy that a HECS-type scheme must be available to all Australian university students paying fees so that current personal or family income is not the determinant of capacity to pay.  Our policy recognises the importance of increasing the number of people updating their skills to meet the demands of new knowledge.  The AVCC therefore supports the Government’s proposal to create the Postgraduate Education Loans Scheme.

However there are three areas that the AVCC wishes to raise with the Committee where we believe the Bill should be amended to improve the effectiveness of the PELS.  These are:

· the definition of eligible institutions;
· capping the amount of debt a student may accumulate: inclusion of HECS debts; and
· capping the amount of debt a student may accumulate: alerting universities to students who have reached the cap inclusion of HECS debts.
Definition of eligible institutions

The Bill provides for PELS to be open to students at all institutions listed in section 4 of the Higher Education Funding Act 1989 (HEFA) - both Table A and Table B.  This includes all universities and other higher education institutions receiving public funding including the University of Notre Dame, Batchelor College, the Australian Maritime College, Avondale College, and Marcus Oldham College.  

Reliance on the existing schedules for access to public funding has the effect of excluding Bond University from the Scheme, despite its standing as a reputable provider of university education in Australia.  Since PELS is targeted at supporting students of fee paying non research postgraduate courses the AVCC can see no rationale for limiting its application to universities that are cited in section 4 of HEFA, which defines eligibility to receive publicly funded places.  It is particularly inequitable in comparison with the University of Notre Dame, which is primarily a private university that also provides some targeted publicly funded places.  

The AVCC recommends that Bond University students be made eligible for PELS, possibly through creation of a Table C of PELS eligible institutions in HEFA.  

Capping the amount of debt a student may accumulate: inclusion of HECS debts

The AVCC does not support the proposed arrangements for the Minister to establish a maximum student debt.  While acknowledging that this power has been included in response to concerns that universities will raise their fees, the AVCC does not believe such a cap is necessary.

The issue we wish to raise is that the cap, as proposed, is a cap on both HECS and PELS debt.  The legislation would prevent students accumulating a HECS debt beyond the maximum established by the Minister.  This would see some students (s106ZJ) unable to complete courses without paying their HECS debt upfront.  The proposal is an important change to Government HECS policy that has not been announced or justified.

The AVCC does not believe it is necessary to include HECS in the cap.  There has been no evidence of problems with the existing HECS arrangements that would justify the proposed constraint on students’ ability to enrol in new courses or complete existing courses.  Rather, the proposed cap is due to concerns about the potential for high levels of student debt from the PELS arrangements.  The cap should thus apply to PELS alone.  

The argument has been made that it is a question of treating HECS and PELS students equally.  The AVCC does not support this argument.  There are many differences between students enrolled in HECS places and students in fee based places.  There is therefore no argument that the HECS arrangements should be changed to cap the total loan a student may take out.

The AVCC recommends that the proposed Chapter 5B of HEFA apply only to students’ PELS debts.

Capping the amount of debt a student may accumulate: alerting universities to students who have reached the cap

The Bill provides for the Commission of Taxation to notify students when they reach the maximum permitted debt.  The Commissioner is also to notify universities of such students where he or she believes the student might be enrolled, or enrol, at a particular university.  This arrangement could work for institutions where the student has been, or is, enrolled.  However, it is difficult to see how it will cope with students who choose to apply to a university that they have not previously enrolled with, unless universities have access to a complete list of all students who have been issued a ‘loan limit notice’.  

While we recognise the privacy issues involved we have recommended to the Government that it consider the potential for universities to be able to check the status of students or at least be quickly informed where an enrolled student is ineligible for further loans.
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